

0405

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Clark, Emma

DATE:

03/22/81



395

0406

260

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 22 day of March 1881

Pleads

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*AD*

Emma Clark

(Case)

David S. Hillis  
~~PHILIP T. PHELPS,~~

District Attorney.

A True Bill.

William H. Phelps

Foreman.

*PP* Pleads guilty

Fred Hoos

Bail  
Henry Evers  
49 Monroe St

0407

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.:

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That

*Emma Clark*

late of the *fifteenth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *eleventh* day of *March* in the year,  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*Matth. A. Beaville*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~Second Count. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

*David S. Rollins*

**BENJ. K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0408

BW  
262

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 2<sup>d</sup> day of March 1881

Pleads

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

D  
H

Emma Clark  
(Defendant)

Daniel S. Collins  
~~DEAN. K. PHILLIPS~~

District Attorney.

A True Bill.

William H. Hilly  
Foreman.

0409

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.:

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That

*Emma Clark*

late of the *fifteenth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *twenty seventh* day of *February* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*Matthly A. Beauville*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~SECOND COUNT. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

*Daniel S. Rollins*

**BENJ. K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0410

261

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 22 day of March 1887

Pleads

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

B  
A.A.

Emma Clark  
(2 cases)

David B. Collins  
~~BENJ. K. FIDERS,~~

District Attorney.

A TRUE BILL.

William H. Phelps  
Foreman.

0411

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That

*Sumner Clark*

late of the *fifteenth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *fourteenth* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*Matty A. Beauville*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~SECOND COUNT. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

*Daniel S. Rollins*

**BENJ. K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0412

260

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 22 day of March 1881

Pleads

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

R

Emma Clark

(E. Case)

David S. Miller  
~~DAVID S. MILLER,~~

Diseriet Attorney.

A TRUE BILL.

William H. Hilditch

Richard W. Foreman.

Pleads guilty

Fined \$100

Paul

Henry Evers

49 Monroe St

0413

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Clark, Theodore

DATE:

03/15/81



395

0414

1417

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 15<sup>th</sup> day of March 1887

Pleas *Chubbuck B.*

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*B*

*Andrew Clark*

DANIEL C ROLLINS,

Attorney at Law,  
No. 100 N. Main St.,  
Boston, Mass.

District Attorney.

A TRUE BILL.

*William H. Hildes*

Foreman.

*How do - for Esthery*

*de a - 1000*

04 15

Third District Police Court.

STATE OF NEW YORK, }  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

of No. the 7 Precinct Police Patrick English Street,  
of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the Sunday 27  
day of February 1881 at the City of New York, in the County of New York,  
at No. 191 East Broadway Street,  
Theodor Clark

did sell, or caused, suffered or permitted to be sold, or exposed for sale, under his direction or authority, strong or spirituous liquors or wines, to be drunk in his house or premises aforesaid, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, contrary to and in violation of the Excise Laws of the State of New York, entitled "An Act to Suppress Intemperance and to Regulate the Sale of Intoxicating Liquors," passed April 16, 1857.

Sworn to before me, this 28th  
day of February 1881 } Patrick English  
B. W. Murphy POLICE JUSTICE.

04 16

210

Police Court—Third District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

*Patrick English*  
vs.

MISDEMEANOR.  
Violation Excise Laws.

*Theodore Clark*

Dated the *28* day of *February* 1881

*Bixby* Magistrate.

*English* Officers.

Witness.....

Bailed \$ *100* to Ans., G. S.

By *John Buhrens*

*241 South* Street.



0417

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That *Theodore Clark*

late of the *Seventh* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *Twenty seventh* day of *February* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid *unknown*, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one *Patrick English*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

SECOND COUNT.—*And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said Theodore Clark*

late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid *unknown*, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one *Patrick English*

contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
~~BENTLEY PETERS~~, District Attorney.

0418

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Clarke, Henry

DATE:

03/15/81



395

0419

The place in which  
Sept sold - was  
the amount for. And  
Plains. & the Sept  
was a Bar/Keblew,  
he was arrested  
minutes to the  
date of application  
& date of granting  
to claim:-

40.

160

Day of Trial  
Counsel,  
Filed 15 day of March 1887  
Pleads ~~Not Guilty~~

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

2A  
311 97th

B.  
Henry Clarke

DANIEL C ROLLINS  
District Attorney.

Part for March 11, 1887  
pleads guilty

A True Bill.

William H. Phelps  
Foreman.

Wm. S. Lashwood  
de. Mem. P.D.

0420

**First District Police Court.**

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

*John J. Clarke*  
of No. *the Precinct* Street,  
of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the *3rd*  
day of *March* 18*87*, at the City of New York, in the County of New York,  
at No. *117 Roosevelt* Street,  
*Henry Clarke*

did sell, or caused, suffered or permitted to be sold, under his direction or authority, strong or spirituous liquors or wines, to be drunk in his house or premises aforesaid, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, contrary to and in violation of the Sections 13 and 14 of the Act of the Legislature of the State of New York, entitled "An Act to Suppress Intemperance and to Regulate the Sale of Intoxicating Liquors," passed April 16, 1857.

Sworn to before me, this *4th*  
day of *March* 18*87*

*John J. Clarke*

*[Signature]*  
POLICE JUSTICE.

0421

228

Police Court—First District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

John J. Clarke

vs. H

Henry Clarke

MISDEMEANOR,  
Selling Liquor, &c. without License.

Dated the 4 day of March 1881

Wardell Magistrate.

Clarke Officers.

Witness H

Bailed \$100 to Ans.

By Charles Kelly

22 Rutledge Street.



0422

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That

*Henry Clarke*

late of the *fourth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *third* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty - *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*John T. Clarke*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~SECOND COUNT. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
~~BENT, R. PHELPS,~~ District Attorney.

0423

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Collins, Kirby

DATE:

03/25/81



395

0424

312

Counsel,  
Filed 25 day of March 1881  
Plends *conclusively* 28.

THE PEOPLE  
vs.  
John S. [unclear]  
John S. [unclear]  
D.P. 4 years.  
Kirby Collins.

INDICTMENT  
Larceny  
the Person of [unclear]

*Amos C. Collins*  
WEN. G. PEPPER,  
District Attorney.

A True Bill.  
*William Phelps*  
Foreman.

Sworn to before me at  
Plends - S. S. [unclear]  
plea withdrawn April 1, 1881.  
Apr 1.

See Lyons  
[unclear]

0425

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

FORM 89 1/2

POLICE COURT - SECOND DISTRICT

ss. *John Mc Grath*

of No. *2001 Third Avenue* being duly sworn, deposes  
and says, that on the *19<sup>th</sup>* day of *December* 18 *80*

at the City of New York, in the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen and carried  
away, from the possession of deponent,  
*and from the Prison*

the following property, to wit:

*One double case  
Silver Watch*

of the value of *Twenty five* Dollars,  
the property of *deponent*

and that this deponent has a probable cause to suspect, and does suspect, that the said property  
was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away by

*Nirby Collins*  
*(number)* for the reasons following to wit:

*That on the morning of the said 19<sup>th</sup>*  
*day of December 1880, deponent in*  
*company with a friend named James*  
*McIntire, hired a Coupe at the corner*  
*of Houston and Thompson Streets from*  
*the accused to ride to No. 404 Canal*  
*Street and that when deponent and his*  
*said friend got into the said Coupe said*  
*Collins also got in and rode with*  
*deponent and said friend to said number*  
*in Canal Street. That when deponent*  
*entered said Coupe the said watch was*  
*in the left side pocket of the vest*

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day of December 1880.

Police Justice

0426

them and then sworn by deponent as a part of  
his bodily clothing and that a few minutes after  
deponent got out of said Coupe deponent  
missed the said watch and found the chain  
that had been attached thereto hanging to the  
said vest. That deponent and friend got  
out of said Coupe at the same time and said  
Collins remained therein and rode away.  
Sworn to before me this } John McGehee  
19<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881 }

John A. Munro  
Police Justice.

City and County of New York, N.Y.:

James H. Tully of N<sup>o</sup>. 404 Canal  
Street, in said city, being duly sworn deposes  
and says that on the morning of the 19<sup>th</sup> day  
of December 1880, John M. Grath, the  
Complainant named herein, informed deponent  
that his watch had been stolen from his  
vest pocket by a man who had hired  
him a coupe on the said morning and by the  
description of the man given to deponent by  
said M<sup>r</sup>. Grath deponent felt satisfied that  
it was a man named Jerry Collins, the  
prisoner named herein, who had stolen said  
watch from said M<sup>r</sup>. Grath. That three or  
four days thereafter said Collins came to  
deponent's saloon and said to deponent  
"Jimmy, I did not know that this man  
was a friend of yours or I would not  
have taken his watch and to satisfy  
you that it is all right here is the  
ticket" (handing deponent a Green Ticket

0427

Police Court—Second District.

CITY AND COUNTY)  
OF NEW YORK ) ss.

*Jerry Collins* being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he is at liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him, states as follows, viz:

QUESTION.—What is your name?

ANSWER.—

*Jerry Collins*

QUESTION.—How old are you?

ANSWER.—

*About forty years of age.*

QUESTION.—Where were you born?

ANSWER.—

*Brooklyn.*

QUESTION.—Where do you live?

ANSWER.—

*I have between 23 & 24<sup>th</sup> Street.*

QUESTION.—What is your occupation?

ANSWER.—

*Shoe-maker*

QUESTION.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

ANSWER.—

*I am not guilty of the charge.*

*Jerry Collins*

Taken before me, this

*19<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881*  
*Wm. H. ...*  
Police Justice.

0428

Form 894

POLICE COURT—SECOND DISTRICT

THE PEOPLE, & C.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

*John McCreath*  
207 3rd Ave.  
vs.

*King Collins*

DATED *March 19* 1881.

*E. A. Skinner* MAGISTRATE.

*Walter Van Benthout* OFFICER.  
*Control Office*

WITNESS

*James A. Tully*  
*44 Leonard Street*

*Watch with papers, etc.*

\$ *600* TO ANS.

BAILED BY

No



*Delivered from van Benthout sec*

*Watch with papers etc*

*11/1*  
*Affidavit taken from the person.*

0429

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York,*  
upon their Oath, present :

That *Kirby Collins* \_\_\_\_\_

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York, aforesaid,

on the *nineteenth* day of *December* in the year of our Lord one  
thousand eight hundred and eighty \_\_\_\_\_ at the Ward, City, and County aforesaid,  
with force and arms

*One watch of the value of twenty five dollars.*

of the goods, chattels, and personal property of one *John M. Grath*  
on the person of said *John M. Grath* then and there being found,  
from the person of said *John M. Grath* then and there feloniously  
did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the Statute in such case made and  
provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their  
dignity.

**BENJAMIN RHELPS, District Attorney.**

0430

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present

THAT the said

*Kirby Collins*

late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, with force and arms, at the Ward, City, and County aforesaid,

*One watch of the value of twenty-five dollars*

of the goods, chattels and personal property of the said

*John cho. Grath*

by a certain person or persons to the Jurors aforesaid unknown, then lately before feloniously stolen ~~of the said~~ *taken and carried away from*

*the said John cho. Grath*

unlawfully, unjustly, ~~and for the sake of wicked gain,~~ did feloniously receive and have (the said

*Kirby Collins*

then and there well knowing the said goods, chattels, and personal property to have been feloniously stolen, ~~against the form of the Statute~~ *taken and carried away* in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

**DANIEL C ROLLINS,**

~~XXXXXXXXXXXX~~

**District Attorney.**

0431

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Collins, Michael

DATE:

03/23/81



395

0432

286

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 23 day of March 1881

Pleas

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs. B

Michael Collins

Samuel G. Collins  
DEPT. OF JUSTICE

District Attorney.

Part No March 29. 1881

pleads guilty

A TRUE BILL.

William H. Hays  
Foreman.

Sub J. P.

By Ben Kishes  
Place. W. W. Lewis  
Attest. J. W. Lewis  
Appointed

J. P.

0433

**First District Police Court.**

STATE OF NEW YORK, }  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } SS.

of No. the 14 McQuincy Street,  
of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the Eleventh  
day of March 1887, at the City of New York, in the County of New York,  
at No. 113 Mott Street,  
Michael Collins, now here

did sell, or caused, suffered or permitted to be sold, under his direction or authority, strong or spirituous liquors or wines, to be drunk in his house or premises aforesaid, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, contrary to and in violation of the Sections 13 and 14 of the Act of the Legislature of the State of New York, entitled "An Act to Suppress Intemperance and to Regulate the Sale of Intoxicating Liquors," passed April 16, 1857.

Sworn to before me, this 11 day of March 1887.  
J. H. Morgan  
POLICE JUSTICE.

Charles Meyer

0434

27

Police Court—First District,

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Charles Meyer

vs.

Michael Collins

MISDEMEANOR,  
Selling Liquor, &c. without License.

Dated the 11<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881

Morgan Magistrate.

Meyer Officers.

Witness.....

Bailed \$ 100 to Ans. G. S.

By Michael Martin

107 Centre Street.



0435

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That *Michael Collins*

late of the *fourteenth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *eleventh* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*Charles Meyer*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~Second Count. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

*Daniel G. Rollins*  
**BENJ. K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0436

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Connell, Patrick

DATE:

03/15/81



395

0437

134  
Day of Trial

Counsel,  
Filed day of March 1881  
Pleads

Violation of Excise Law.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

B.  
Patrick Conall

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
District Attorney.

A TRUE BILL.

William H. Kelly

Foreman.

P. 2 March 23, 1881.

W. H. Kelly  
F. D.

Sept de censed  
F. D.

0438

**First District Police Court.**

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

of No. the City of New York Street,

of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the

day of March 1887, at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

at No. 38 Washington Street,

Patrick Connell, nonpresent  
did sell, or caused, suffered or permitted to be sold, under his direction or authority, strong or spirituous liquors or wines, to be drunk in his house or premises aforesaid, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, contrary to and in violation of the Sections 13 and 14 of the Act of the Legislature of the State of New York, entitled "An Act to Suppress Intemperance and to Regulate the Sale of Intoxicating Liquors," passed April 16, 1857.

Sworn to before me, this 8  
day of March 1887

James J. Luite

[Signature]  
POLICE JUSTICE.

0439

39 Apr 20 Greenwich St  
Ireland

Police Court—First District

THE PEOPLE & c.  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

James J. Fuite  
27 Decm  
vs.  
Patrick Cornell

WISDEMEANOR.  
Selling Liquor, &c. without License.

Dated the 3 day of March 1881

Wardell Magistrate.

Fuite  
27 Officers.

Witness

Bailed \$100 to Ans.

By Daniel Mooney

17 Stone Street.



0440

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That

*Patrick Connell*

late of the *first* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *fifth* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty - *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*James J. Suite*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~SECOND COUNT. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
~~BENJAMIN PIPERS~~, District Attorney.

0441

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Connelly, Patrick

DATE:

03/11/81



395

0442

From the investiga-  
tion that I have made  
in this case I do not  
think the prisoner can  
be thought to be innocent  
she is a man of means  
of excellent character  
& it is almost im-  
possible that he should  
have committed any  
such crime. Certainly  
the jury will never  
convict. I think  
the prisoner should  
be discharged &  
he can reorganize  
Myself  
March 16, 1887

Counsel  
Filed 11 day of March 1887  
Pleads Not Guilty

THE PEOPLE  
vs.  
Patrik Connelly  
and up stairs  
David L. Collins  
BENJ. K. PHEERS,  
District Attorney.

ROBBERY—First Degree.

A True Bill.  
William H. Phelps  
Foreman,  
Part No. March, 16, 1887  
Paul Hooley  
Wm. H. H. H.  
Andrew J. J.

0443

Police Court—Third District.

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

Patrick Connolly being duly examined before the under-  
signed, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he was  
at liberty to answer, or not, all or any questions put to ~~him~~, states as follows, viz.:

Question.—What is your name?

Answer.— Patrick Connolly

Question.—How old are you?

Answer.— I am over forty

Question.—Where were you born?

Answer.— Ireland

Question.—Where do you live?

Answer.— 45 Bond St.

Question.—What is your occupation?

Answer.— Furniture finisher

Question.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the  
charge here preferred against you?

Answer.— I am not guilty  
Patrick Connolly

Taken before me, this  
23  
day of July  
John D. Smith Justice  
1881

0444

Police Court--Third District.

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK. } ss.

Mary Dollinger

of No. 430 East 11 Street,

being duly sworn, deposes and saith that on the 21 day of February 1881, at the 10 - Ward of the City of New York, in

the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away from the person of deponent, by force and violence, without his consent and against his will, the following property,

viz.: one pocket book containing good and lawful money of the issue of the United States consisting of one note of the denomination and value of one dollar and one Silver coin of the value of fifty cents, said property being in all

of the value of One dollar and seventy five cents DOLLARS, the property of deponent

and that this deponent has a probable cause to suspect, and does suspect, that the said property was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away by force and violence as aforesaid, by

Patrick Connolly (now here)

for the following reason to wit:

Deponent was walking crossing the Bowery an Spring Street and when deponent was in said Street, said Patrick struck deponent one violent blow on her face with his fist and then seized the pocket book, which was then in the left hand of deponent smashed it from deponent and run away

Mary Dollinger

of February 1881  
John M. Smith  
Police Justice

Sworn before me, this

23

day

0445

Police Court—Third District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

AFFIDAVIT—ROBBERY.

Mary Gallinger  
420 East 11th St

vs.

Patrick Kennedy

Dated July 23 1887

Smith

Magistrate.

Steele 10

Officer.



2:30 P.M.

1000 Aug 23

Lottery money

Concluded

0446

New York March 16 1887

Patrick Conolly now charged  
with Robbery and on this  
days calendar for trial  
has been in my employ  
for about two years.

He left my place of business  
last December ~~for the~~  
by reason of my inability  
to give him further employment  
on account of challenges of  
trials.

I consider Conolly to  
be a truthful reliable and  
honest man and he  
bears the reputation of a  
quiet and peaceable  
citizen.

I should require a man  
I would take Conolly only  
my employ again.

Support Mapp

0447

City Prison Feb 28th

To Mr Rollins the District Attorney  
Dear I thought I would write you a few  
lines hoping that <sup>you</sup> will Concede my Case in a  
parshal & fair manner as you see fit I am  
in the City Prison a place where I never was  
before on a false & thumped up Charge by one  
of those Bowery Bitters I am one of her victims  
I will tell you howe She do it when She finds  
a Man walking a long the Street with any sign  
of intoxacation She Corner up to him & tells him  
that She has been out of work & want him to pay  
for her Lodgings She came up to me on Friday the  
18th Evening & wanted me to give her a Shade of my  
nombrella I did so because I was a little weak minded  
under the influence of Beer I went with her  
to 15 Bowery a house of bad Repite & She took  
9 dollars & 50 Cents out of my Pocket & Ran a  
way I had not seen her a gain until  
Monday Evening when she come up to me on the Bowery &  
wanted me to go with her a gain & that She would  
make it all right with me when I pushed her  
away from me than She Claimed that I assulted  
her & took her Pocket Book with 150 in it why did  
ent She not say So then & call a Police Man  
Every man would be on to Ketch me if I was  
Gilty of Sutch I never committed a crime of  
Robbery in my life I am as I inisent a man as  
Ever was arrested for any Sutch a Crime & will Prove it

0448

I have lived in New York all most 20 years. I am a man of good character & a hard working man which I can prove I am an upholsterer by trade & worked in A. T. Stewarts 17 years ago & have been there lately two years ago have worked in Sheppards Knafels Cor. of 13 & 6. I have the last year several other first class establishments in this city it would be late for me to commence to steal now when did not do it when I was young. I am a man that is in delicate health & very badley ruptured & all so going in to consumption - My eye sight is very weak & I could not see two rods before me at night now I beg of you if it lays in your power what I think it do to let me go my own bail until I can get the witness that saw me when I pushed her away from me. I can get people in this city that would testify to my character if you should allow me to go my own bail I will make an assignment of 1000 or two thousand dollars in the Bleeker Street Dry Dock Savings bank in the City of New York and that is as good as a my real estate I am under 1000 bail I will give you oneday if the rascals of Police men & Detectives that we got in this city I am all most sure that they put her up to make a false charge against me she rope in with Prostitutes & get there share of the plunder the a leged robbery was committed on Monday evening & was arrested on Tuesday evening so you see it was a put up job as she

Could not very well have me arrested with out Charge of Stealing 150 I never saw one of her class Carry a Pocket Book in their hand in all my life I can Prove by older men Slaven & others that I was around the Bowery all the time & never left Monday & Tuesday I hope you will consider for me if you can in admitting me to go my own bail

I remain yours very Respfully

Patrick Connelly

0449

Geo  
J. W.  
Connelly

A prisoner now  
in the City

Prison  
March 1871

0450

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.:

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York,*  
*upon their Oath, present:*

That *Patrick Connelly*

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York, aforesaid,  
on the *twenty first* day of *February* in the year of our Lord  
one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one* at the Ward, City and County  
aforesaid, with force and arms, in and upon one *Mary Dollinger*  
in the peace of the said People, then and there being, feloniously did make an assault  
and \_\_\_\_\_ promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there  
due and unsatisfied, (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the  
denomination of twenty dollars, and of the value of twenty dollars each:  
\_\_\_\_\_ promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied,  
(and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of ten  
dollars, and of the value of ten dollars each:  
\_\_\_\_\_ promissory notes for the  
payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied, (and of the kind known  
as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of five dollars, and of the value  
of five dollars each:  
\_\_\_\_\_ promissory notes for the payment of money, being  
then and there due and unsatisfied, (and of the kind known as United States Treasury  
Notes) of the denomination of two dollars and of the value of two dollars each:  
*one* promissory note for the payment of money, being then and there due  
and unsatisfied, (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Note), of the  
denomination of one dollar, and of the value of one dollar each: \_\_\_\_\_ coins,  
(of the kind known as cents), of the value of one cent each: \_\_\_\_\_ coins,  
(of the kind known as two cents), of the value of two cents each: \_\_\_\_\_ coins,  
(of the kind known as five-cent pieces), of the value of five cents each:  
\_\_\_\_\_ due bills of the United States of America, the same being then and there due  
and unsatisfied, (and of the kind known as fractional currency), of the denomination  
of fifty cents each and of the marketable value of fifty cents each:  
\_\_\_\_\_ due bills of the United States of America, the same being then and there due and  
unsatisfied, (and of the kind known as fractional currency), of the denomination of  
twenty-five cents each, and of the marketable value of twenty-five cents each:  
\_\_\_\_\_ due bills of the United States of America, the same being then and there  
due and unsatisfied, (and of the kind known as fractional currency), of the denomina-  
tion of ten cents each, and of the marketable value of ten cents each:

*One coin of the kind called a half dollar  
of the value of fifty cents  
One pocket book of the value of twenty  
five cents*

of the goods, chattels, and personal property of the said *Mary Dollinger*

from the person of said *Mary Dollinger* and against  
the will, and by violence to the person of the said *Mary Dollinger*  
then and there violently and feloniously did rob, steal, take,  
and carry away, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and  
against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

*Daniel S. Roelke* ~~BENJ. R. PHELPS~~, District Attorney.

0451

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Connolly, Joseph

DATE:

03/08/81



395

0452

27

Counsel,  
Filed *P.* day of *March* 18*87*  
Pleads

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*Do,*  
*vs* *Henry*  
*Trudlow*

*P*

Indictment.—Larceny.—*Grand*

*David B. Ellis*  
~~DAVID B. ELLIS~~

District Attorney

*Part in March 9, 1887*  
*Heads guilty,*  
A TRUE BILL.

*William H. Kelly*  
Foreman

*Henry*  
*Trudlow*

*W. B. ...*  
*March 14,*

THE PEOPLE OF THE COUNTY OF ...  
vs. ...  
Indictment.—Larceny.—Grand

0453

Form 112.

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

Police Court—First District.

of No. *83 Leonard St.* *Henry P Smith*  
and says, that on the *28th* day of *January* 18*81*  
at the City of New York, in the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried  
away from the possession of deponent,

the following property, viz: *One Case of Pekin Coats*  
*containing Eleven hundred*  
*and thirty eight and 3/4 yards*  
*of the value of Eighteen cents*  
*per yard.*

of the value of *One hundred ninety five* <sup>*50*</sup> *Dollars,*  
the property of *Deponent & H P Smith.*

and that this deponent has a probable cause to suspect, and does suspect, that the said property  
was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away by *Joseph Connolly*  
*now present & in the*  
*employ of deponent's mechanic.*  
*That said Connolly voluntarily*  
*confessed that he stole and*  
*sold property.*

*H P Smith*

Sworn to, before me, this *18th* day  
of *March* 18*81*  
*H. M. ...*  
Police Justice.

0454

Police Court—First District.

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

*Joseph Connolly* being duly examined before the under-  
signed, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he was at  
liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him, states as follows,  
viz:

Question. What is your name?

Answer. *Joseph Connolly*

Question. How old are you?

Answer. *Twenty years.*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *In New York.*

Question. Where do you live?

Answer. *106 Perry Street.*

Question. What is your occupation?

Answer. *Truck driver*

Question. Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge  
here preferred against you?

Answer. *I took the property.*

*J. Connolly*

Taken before me, this

*William J. ...*  
day of *March* 18*89*  
Police Justice.

0455

COUNSEL FOR COMPLAINANT.

Name, .....  
Address, .....

COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT.

Name, .....  
Address, .....

Police Court—First District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF  
*Henry J. Smith,*  
*83 Leonard St.*  
*vs*  
*Joseph Connolly*  
A. H. Davitt—Larceny.

2 .....  
3 .....  
4 .....  
5 .....  
6 .....

Dated *7 March 1881.*  
*Wm. J. Magistrate.*  
*Mary J. Fogarty, Officer.*  
Clerk.

Witnesses: .....  
§ *157* to answer *Com*  
at ..... Sessions  
Received at Dist. Atty's office

*The officer says  
that he has made  
inquiries as to depth  
of the gutter - that this  
is the 1st offence*

No. 1, by .....  
Residence, .....

No. 2, by .....  
Residence, .....

No. 3, by .....  
Residence, .....

No. 4, by .....  
Residence, .....

No. 5, by .....  
Residence, .....

No. 6, by .....  
Residence, .....

0456

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
in and for the body of the City and County of New York,  
upon their Oath, present:

That

*Joseph Connolly*

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York, afore-  
said, on the ~~twenty eighth~~ day of *January* in the year of our Lord one  
thousand eight hundred and ~~seventy eight~~ *eighty one* at the Ward, City and County  
aforesaid, with force and arms

*Eleven hundred and thirty eight yards  
of cord of the value of eighteen cents  
each yard*

of the goods, chattels and personal property of one

*Henry J. Smith*

then and  
there being found, feloniously did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the  
Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the  
State of New York and their dignity.

*Daniel C. Rollins*  
**BENJ. K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0457

**BOX:**

33

**FOLDER:**

395

**DESCRIPTION:**

Connor, Michael J.

**DATE:**

03/25/81



395

0458

Sept 25th 1881  
place has been  
amended  
amended -

F.S.

347

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 25 day of March 1881

Pleas

THE PEOPLE

vs.

104 Cedar B

Michael J. Connor

Daniel Collins  
BENJ. K. PHILIPS

District Attorney.

Part 1st March 28. 1881

pleading guilty. 29.

A TRUE BILL.

William H. Phillips

Foreman.

Eric J. Fox

To further proceed

11. 29. 1881

Violation of Excise Law.

0459

**First District Police Court.**

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

of No. the 109<sup>th</sup> Precinct 11<sup>th</sup> Street,  
of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the  
day of March 1887, at the City of New York, in the County of New York,  
at No. 109 Cedar St Street,  
Michael J. Connor Now here

did sell, or caused, suffered or permitted to be sold, under his direction or authority, strong or spirituous liquors  
or wines, to be drunk in his house or premises aforesaid, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, contrary to  
and in violation of the Sections 13 and 14 of the Act of the Legislature of the State of New York, entitled "An  
Act to Suppress Intemperance and to Regulate the Sale of Intoxicating Liquors," passed April 16, 1857.

Sworn to before me, this 11<sup>th</sup>  
day of March 1887

B. H. [Signature]

POLICE JUSTICE.

James Malley

0460

272

Police Court—First District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

James Malley

vs.

Michael J. Connor

MISDEMEANOR,  
Selling liquor, &c. without license.

Dated the 11<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881

Morgan Magistrate.

Malley Officers.

Witness:

Bailed \$ 100 to Ans. *Edwards*

By

*Edward J. Burke*

*10 1/2 Morris Street.*



0461

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That *Michael J. Connor*

late of the *first* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *eleventh* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*James Malley*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~Second Count.—And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity~~

*Daniel G. Rollins*

**BENJ. K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0462

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Connors, William

DATE:

03/18/81



395

0463

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Spellman, Walter

DATE:

03/18/81



395

0464

**BOX:**

33

**FOLDER:**

395

**DESCRIPTION:**

Bodine, John

**DATE:**

03/18/81



395

0465

1891  
A. B. Reynolds

Day of Trial *Law Office*

Counsel, *for*

Filed *1st* day of *March* 188*1*

Pleads *for* *County* *(et)*

*in* **BURGARY—Third Degree, and**  
**Receiving [Stolen Goods.]**

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*1* **William Connor**  
*2* **Walter Stebbins**  
*3* **John H. Dine**  
*12. 81* **Condyot**

DANIEL C. ROLLINS,  
ATTORNEY AT LAW,  
FOR THE DEFENSE.

District Attorney.

A True Bill.

*William Connor*  
*March 20, 1881* Foreman  
*(cell) J. J. Young* Jury Clerk

Sentence suspended.  
made of their age & Hermon  
9-11-81 on note.

0466

Police Court—Second District.

City and County }  
of New York. } ss:

Michael Casey

of No. 75 E. Houston Street, being duly sworn,

deposes and says, that the premises No. 75 E. Houston Street, 14<sup>th</sup> Ward, in the City and County aforesaid, the said being a frame building

and which was occupied by deponent as a pawn broker unredeemed pledge store

were **BURGLARIOUSLY** entered by means of breaking the front window of the store.

on the night of the morning of the 14<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881

and the following property feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away, viz: one working patrol of the value of three dollars, gold and plated jewelry of the value of twelve dollars and other articles in all of the value of fifteen dollars.



the property of this deponent

and deponent further says, that he has great cause to believe, and does believe, that the aforesaid **BURGLARY** was committed and the aforesaid property taken, stolen

and carried away by William Connor, Walter Spellman and John Bodine

(Clerk) for the reasons following, to wit: that deponent closed and firmly fastened the premises 75 E. Houston street at or about eleven o'clock of the 14<sup>th</sup> inst that at or about seven o'clock A.M. of the 15<sup>th</sup> inst deponent discovered that the window had been broken and the aforementioned articles taken therefrom. Deponent is informed by officers Haley, Culan and Heine of the Central Office that they arrested William Connor, Walter Spellman and John Bodine on the 14<sup>th</sup> inst and that William Connor had in his possession a plated gold ring. That he returned said and copies

done

0467

that the ring had been given him by Spellman and Bodine and that they had confessed to him that they had stolen the same from premises 75 E Houston street. That they wished him to take the ring to a pawnbroker, and determine its value, Depoant identifies the ring here shown as a part of the property herein charged as stolen and as his property, sworn to before me this

15th day of March 1881 J. M. Patrick

Police Justice

State and County of New York,  
City of New York 356

Owen Kelly of the Central office Police & being duly sworn deposes and says that he arrested William Connor on the 14th inst. Walter Spellman and John Bodine on the 15th inst. That Connor had in his possession the gold plated ring here shown that he was in the act of passing the same, that he acknowledged and confessed to depoant that Walter Spellman and John Bodine gave him the ring to pass; that they had broken the window of premises 75 E Houston street and had stolen the said ring therefrom

sworn to before me this

15th day of March 1881

J. M. Patrick  
Police Justice

Owen Kelly

0468

Police Court—Second District.

CITY AND COUNTY  
OF NEW YORK.

*William Quinn*

being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he is at liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him, states as follows, viz:

QUESTION.—What is your name?

ANSWER.—*William Quinn*

QUESTION.—How old are you?

ANSWER.—*Twelve years*

QUESTION.—Where were you born?

ANSWER.—*New York*

QUESTION.—Where do you live?

ANSWER.—*66, South 3rd Avenue*

QUESTION.—What is your occupation?

ANSWER.—*Go to school*

QUESTION.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

ANSWER.—*I was going for a loaf of bread. When I was met by Spillman and Bodine, they told me to take the way here & then and take it to the pawn office to see if it was gold. I was arrested in the act. I am not guilty. They Spillman and Bodine confessed to me that they had broken the window and stolen the ring.*

*William <sup>Quinn</sup> ~~Quinn~~*

Taken before me, this

day of *March* 1887

Police Justice.

*Henry D. Quinn*

0469

Police Court—Second District.

CITY AND COUNTY )  
OF NEW YORK ) ss.

*Walter Spellman* being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he is at liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him, states as follows, viz:

QUESTION.—What is your name?

ANSWER.— *Walter Spellman*

QUESTION.—How old are you?

ANSWER.— *Twelve years*

QUESTION.—Where were you born?

ANSWER.— *New York*

QUESTION.—Where do you live?

ANSWER.— *241 Elizabeth*

QUESTION.—What is your occupation?

ANSWER.— *School boy*

QUESTION.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

ANSWER.— *I took the ring from the window,  
Bodie broke the window  
Walter Spellman*

Taken before me this  
*Samuel Dawson*  
14th  
day of *March*  
1887  
Police Justice.

0470

Police Court—Second District.

CITY AND COUNTY)  
OF NEW YORK.

*John Bodine* being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he is at liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him, states as follows, viz:

QUESTION.—What is your name?

ANSWER.—*John Bodine*

QUESTION.—How old are you?

ANSWER.—*Twelve years*

QUESTION.—Where were you born?

ANSWER.—*New York*

QUESTION.—Where do you live?

ANSWER.—*81 Crosby st*

QUESTION.—What is your occupation?

ANSWER.—*Deliver boy*

QUESTION.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

ANSWER.—*I broke the window. I stole the picture.*

*John Henry Bodine*

Taken before me, this

*John Bodine*  
19th day of August 1881  
Police Justice.

0471

Police Court—Second District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

*881*  
Michael Casey  
75 E. Hawthorn St.  
1 William Cronin  
2 Walter Spellman  
3 John Bodine

OFFENSE:  
BURGLARY AND LARCENY.

Dated *March 16th* 1887  
*Fallon* Magistrate.

*Haley* Officer.  
*Richard Keenan* Clerk.

Witnesses:  
*Haley*  
*Richard C. O'Keefe*  
*Hunn*  
Ex. 2 1/2 pm. March 13

Committed in default of \$ *500.* Bail. *Wachs*



Bailed by \_\_\_\_\_  
No. \_\_\_\_\_ Street.

TO THE CHIEF CLERK!

*Part 1*

SEND ME THE PAPERS IN THE CASE OF  
*John Mary*  
PEOPLE

vs.  
*Conners*  
*Spellman*  
*Bodine*

*Take not final version*  
*without consultation*  
*These depts*  
*are each*  
*12 years old*

*If not before*  
*in trouble could*  
*not a suspension*  
*of sentence be*  
*advisable?*  
*Lep*

0472

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York,*  
*upon their Oath, present:*

That

*William Connor, Walter Spellman*  
*and John H. Rodine each*

late of the *fourteenth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York,  
aforesaid, on the *fourteenth* day of *March* in the year of our Lord one  
thousand eight hundred and eighty *one* with force and arms, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, the *store* of

*Michael Casey* there situate, feloniously and  
burglariously, did break into and enter, the same being a building in which divers  
goods, merchandise, and valuable things were then and there kept for use, sale and  
deposit, to wit: the goods, chattels, and personal property hereinafter described, with  
intent the said goods, chattels, and personal property of the said

*Michael Casey* then and there being, then and there  
feloniously and burglariously to steal, take and carry away, and

*One pistol of the value of three dollars*  
*twelve rings of the value of one dollar*  
*each*

of the goods, chattels, and personal property of the said

*Michael Casey*

so kept as aforesaid in the said *store* then and there being, then and  
there feloniously did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the Statute in  
such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of  
New York, and their dignity.

0473

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present

THAT the said

*William Connor, Walter Spellman  
and John H. Rodine each*

late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in  
the year aforesaid, with force and arms, at the Ward, City, and County aforesaid,

*One pistole of the value of three dollars  
twelve rings of the value of one dollar  
each*

of the goods, chattels and personal property of

*Michael Casey*

by a certain person or persons to the Jurors aforesaid unknown, then lately before  
feloniously stolen ~~of the said~~ *taken and carried away from*

*the said Michael Casey*

unlawfully, unjustly, ~~and for the sake of wicked gain,~~ did feloniously receive and have  
(the said

*William Connor, Walter Spellman  
and John H. Rodine*

then and there well knowing the said goods, chattels, and personal property to have  
been feloniously stolen <sup>*taken and carried away*</sup> against the form of the Statute in such case made and pro  
vided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

~~DANIEL C. ROLLINS,~~  
~~BENJ. K. PHELPS,~~ District Attorney.

0474

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Conway, George

DATE:

03/10/81



395

0475

71

Day of Trial

Counsel,

Filed 16 day of March 1887,

Pleads

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*George Conway*

BURGLARY—Third Degree, and  
Receiving [Stolen Goods.]

DANIEL G. COHEN  
BENJ. K. PHELPS,

District Attorney.

vs. Mrs. March 11, 1887

pleads *Not Guilty*

A True Bill.

*William H. Phelps*

Foreman

*L. G. 6 Mrs. S. P.*

*Ed.*

0476

Police Office, First District.

City and County of New York, ss.:

*Jacob Kadschan*  
of No. *140 Centre* Street, being duly sworn,

deposes and says, that the premises No. *140* Street, *9<sup>th</sup>* Ward, in the City and County aforesaid, the said being a *foundry* and which was occupied by deponent as a *such*

were **BURGLARIOUSLY** entered by means *forcing open the scuttle leading from the roof into said premises*

on the *night* of the *first* day of *March* 18*78* and the following property, feloniously taken, stolen and carried away, viz.:

*Metal patterns and metal castings of the value of two hundred and fifty dollars*

the property of *deponent and his partners*

and deponent further says, that he has great cause to believe, and does believe, that the aforesaid **BURGLARY** was committed and the aforesaid property taken, stolen and carried away by

*George Connolly* now here

for the reasons following, to wit: *That said scuttle was fastened and secured at about the hour of six o'clock on the day in question. That on the following morning deponent found said scuttle forced open and the above described property taken and carried away and deponent is informed that a portion of said property was found in the possession of the prisoner and deponent believes the same to be true.*

*Done & before me this 1st day of March 1878  
J. H. [Signature]  
Police Justice*

0477

City and County of New York, I, Thomas S. Harper of the 14 Precinct Police being duly sworn says that at about the hour of Midnight on the 1<sup>st</sup> instant defendant found the prisoner coming through a hallway in 79 Baxter Street and found in his possession a quantity of Metal Patterns and Metal Castings which are now identified by the Complainant as a part of the property stolen from Complainant's place of business No 140 Centre Street

Thos Harper

Sworn to before me this  
9<sup>th</sup> day of March 1887  
B. Manning  
Police Justice

0478

POLICE COURT—FIRST DISTRICT.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

*George Connolly*

being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge, and being informed that he was at liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him states as follows, viz:

Question. What is your name?

Answer.

*George Connolly*

Question. How old are you?

Answer.

*25 Years*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer.

*New York City*

Question. Where do you live?

Answer.

*90 Baxter Street*

Question. What is your occupation?

Answer.

*Cannemaker*

Question. Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

Answer.

*I am guilty of the charge  
George Conway*

Taken before me, this

day of

*March* 1881

Police Justice

*[Signature]*

0479

Form 66

Police Court—First District.

*Amicus & Lucy  
S. Green et al v. City*

THE PEOPLE, &c., v.

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

*Herb K. Adcock*

*140 Bay St. S.*

*George Anthony*

BAILED

No. 1, by

Residence

No. 2, by

Residence

No. 3, by

Residence

No. 4, by

Residence

No. 5, by

Residence

No. 6, by

Residence

Name

Address

COUNSEL FOR COMPLAINANT

Offense

*Drinking & driving*

Dated *March 2* 19*37*

*Wm. H. ...* Magistrate

*Thomas W. ...* Officer

*14* Clerk

COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT

Name

Address

Witnesses,

*Call the Officer*



Received in Dist. Atty's Office

0480

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
in and for the body of the City and County of New York,  
upon their Oath, present:

That

*George Conway*

late of the *Sixth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York,  
aforesaid, on the *first* day of *March* in the year of our Lord one  
thousand eight hundred and eighty *one* with force and arms, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, the *foundry and shop of*

*Jacob Kasschau* there situate, feloniously and  
burglariously, did break into and enter, the same being a building in which divers  
goods, merchandise, and valuable things were then and there kept for use, sale and  
deposit, to wit: the goods, chattels, and personal property hereinafter described, with  
intent the said goods, chattels, and personal property of the said

*Jacob Kasschau* then and there being, then and there  
feloniously and burglariously to steal, take and carry away, and

*twenty five hundred pounds of metal*  
*(a more accurate description of which*  
*cannot now be given) of the value*  
*of ten cents each pound*

of the goods, chattels, and personal property of the said

*Jacob Kasschau*

so kept as aforesaid in the said *foundry and shop* then and there being, then and  
there feloniously did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the Statute in  
such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of  
New York, and their dignity.

0481

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present  
THAT the said

*George Conway*

late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in  
the year aforesaid, with force and arms, at the Ward, City, and County aforesaid,

*Twenty five hundred pounds of metal  
(a more accurate description of which  
is to the jurors aforesaid unknown) of  
the value of ten cents each pound*

of the goods, chattels and personal property of

*Jacob Kassehan*

by a certain person or persons to the Jurors aforesaid unknown, then lately before  
feloniously stolen ~~of the said~~ *taken and carried away from the said*

*Jacob Kassehan*

unlawfully, unjustly, and ~~for the sake of wicked gain,~~ did feloniously receive and have  
(the said

*George Conway*

then and there well knowing the said goods, chattels, and personal property to have  
been feloniously stolen ~~against the form of the Statute~~ *taken and carried away* in such case made and pro-  
vided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

~~DANIEL C. ROLLINS,~~  
~~BENJ. K. PHELPS,~~ District Attorney.

0482

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Crossan, Thomas

DATE:

03/22/81



395

0483

275

Day of Trial

Counsel, *all present*  
Filed 22 day of *March* 1881

Pleas *not guilty etc.*

*Violation of Excise Law.*

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*B*

*James Bowman*

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
PROSECUTOR GENERAL

*District Attorney.*

A True Bill.

*William H. Hays*

*Foreman.*

*Key off*

0484

Third District Police Court.

STATE OF NEW YORK, } ss.  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, }

of the 11 Prairie Police John Sheridan Street,

of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the 12<sup>th</sup>  
day of March 1887, at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

at No. 72 1/2 East 11<sup>th</sup> Street,  
Thomas Crossan

did sell, or caused, suffered or permitted to be sold, or exposed for sale, under his direction or authority, strong or spirituous liquors or wines, to be drunk in his house or premises aforesaid, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, contrary to and in violation of the Excise Laws of the State of New York, entitled "An Act to Suppress Intemperance and to Regulate the Sale of Intoxicating Liquors," passed April 16, 1857.

Sworn to before me, this 12<sup>th</sup>  
day of March 1887

Solon B. Smith

POLICE JUSTICE.

John Sheridan

0485

25. Ireland, 183 - 7th St.

Police Court—Third District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

John Sheridan

v.s.

11<sup>th</sup>

MISDEMEANOR,  
Violation Excise Laws.

Thomas Crossan

Dated the 12<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881

Smith Magistrate.

Sheridan Officers.  
11 Beenu st

Witness

Bailed \$ 100 to Ans., G.S.

By Joseph Brainerd

1807 24 East 11th



0486

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That *Thomas Crossan*

late of the *eleventh* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *twelfth* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*John Sheridan*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~SECOND COUNT.— And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
**BENTLEY K. PHELPS, District Attorney.**

0487

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Cummings, Owen

DATE:

03/14/81



395

0488

107  
Counsel,  
Filed 14 day of March 1871.  
Pleads, Mr. Gully 15

THE PEOPLE

vs.

*2*  
Orest Cummings

David S. Rollin  
~~BEANE & PHIPPS~~

District Attorney.

A True Bill.

William H. Childs  
Foreman.

Part Two - March 22 - 1871

Tried and acquitted

0489

Police Court—Second District.

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK } ss.

*Oliver Cummings* being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he is at liberty to refuse to answer any question that may be put to him, states as follows, viz:

QUESTION.—What is your name?

ANSWER.—*Oliver Cummings*

QUESTION.—How old are you?

ANSWER.—*Twenty years and nine months*

QUESTION.—Where were you born?

ANSWER.—*Ireland*

QUESTION.—Where do you live?

ANSWER.—*37<sup>th</sup> St between 10<sup>th</sup> & 11<sup>th</sup> Ave*

QUESTION.—What is your occupation?

ANSWER.—*Driver*

QUESTION.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

ANSWER.—*I have nothing to say at present*  
*Oliver Cummings*  
*Driver*

*John J. Brennan*  
Taken before me, this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ 1881  
Police Justice

0490

FORM 10.

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK. } ss.

Emma Livingstone

of No. 414 W. 39th Street, being duly sworn, deposes and says,  
that on the 5th day of March 1887 at the City of  
New York, in the County of New York,

Owen Cummings

(now here) did at or about eleven o'clock on the night  
of the day aforesaid enter said premises <sup>and</sup> forcibly ravish  
this deponent. That he seized deponent by the neck  
threw deponent prostrate upon the bed, and by  
force and violence did have carnal knowledge  
and intercourse with this deponent against  
deponent's will and whilst so doing did place  
his hand upon and over deponent's mouth thereby  
preventing this deponent from crying out for succour.

Emma Livingstone

*Wm. J. ...*  
Sworn before me this  
5th day of March 1887  
at New York  
City  
Justice

0491

244

FORM 10:

Police Court - Second District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

*Emma Livings*  
414 or 39<sup>th</sup> St.

Rape  
AFFIDAVIT

*Owen Cummings*  
Dated, *March 7<sup>th</sup>* 1881

*Patterson* Justice.

*Delaney* Officer  
20<sup>th</sup>

Witness, *Annie Reck* =  
57.

*#1500. to Mrs. G. S. Conner*



0492

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } RR.

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York,*  
upon their Oath, present :

That

*Owen Cummings*

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York, aforesaid,  
on the *fifth* day of *March* in the year of our Lord one  
thousand eight hundred and ~~seventy-eight~~ *one* at the Ward, City, and County aforesaid,  
with force and arms, in and upon one *Emma Livingston*  
wilfully and feloniously made an assault, and that the said *Owen*

*Cummings* her the said  
*Emma Livingston* then and there by force and with  
violence to her, the said *Emma Livingston* and against her  
will, did wilfully and feloniously ravish and carnally know

against the form of the  
Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the  
State of New York and their dignity.

And the jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present: That the said

*Owen Cummings*

late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit, on the  
day and in the year aforesaid, and at the place aforesaid, with force and arms, in and  
upon her, the said *Emma Livingston* wilfully and feloniously  
made an assault, with intent her the said *Emma Livingston*  
against her will, and by force and violence, to then and there wilfully and feloniously  
ravish and carnally know, against the form of the Statute in such case made and pro-  
vided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

*Daniel S. Rollins*  
~~BENJ. K. PHELPS~~, District Attorney.

0493

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Cunningham, Hugh

DATE:

03/22/81



395

0494

248  
Day of Trial

Counsel,  
Filed 22 day of March 1888  
Pleads

THE PEOPLE  
vs.  
Hugh Cunningham  
Violation of Excise Law.

DANIEL C ROLLINS,  
District Attorney.  
Plead guilty -  
A TRUE BILL.  
Foreman.

File # 248

Ref. accused holding  
action of D.P.C.  
An application  
for license - for  
his license

T.O.

0495

District Attorney's Office.

THE PEOPLE,

vs.

Hugh Cunningham.

Has made application for license and filed bond.

License last year to self & brother - delayed until dissolution.

0496

**Police Court, Fifth District.**

STATE OF NEW YORK.  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK. } ss.

of ~~No.~~ *the 18<sup>th</sup> Precinct* *Police* *Thomas Mulvey* ~~Street~~

of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the *18<sup>th</sup>* day  
of *March* 18*87* in the City of New York, in the County of New York, at

No. *274 1<sup>st</sup> Avenue* ~~Street~~  
*Hugh Cunningham (nowhere)*

did then and there sell, and caused, suffered and permitted to be sold, under his direction and authority, strong and  
spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, being intoxicating liquors, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, to be drunk  
in the house or premises aforesaid, contrary to and in violation of law.

WHEREFORE, deponent prays that said *Hugh Cunningham*  
may be arrested and dealt with according to law.

Sworn to before me, this *11<sup>th</sup>* day } *Thomas Mulvey*  
of *March* 18*87* }  
*J. P. [Signature]* POLICE JUSTICE.

0497

Police Court, Fifth District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Thomas Mulvey

vs.

18

Joseph Cunningham

Date 11<sup>th</sup> day of March 1881

J. W. Helms Magistrate.

Mulvey Officer 18

Witness,

Bailed \$ 100 to Ans. G. S.

By Frank J. J. [Signature] Sheriff



Violation Excise Law.

279

0498

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.:  
OF NEW YORK, }

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That *Hugh Cunningham*

late of the *eighteenth* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of  
New York, aforesaid, on the *teenth* day of *March* in the year  
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one*, at the Ward,  
City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to  
wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of  
whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of  
beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor, to the  
jurors aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at one  
time, to one

*Thomas Mubrey*

; without having a  
license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made  
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

~~SECOND COUNT.—And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further  
present: THAT the said~~

~~late of the Ward, City, and County aforesaid, then and there being a person duly  
licensed according to law to sell spirituous liquors and wines on the day  
and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same  
being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with  
force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit: One  
gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one  
gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one  
gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the jurors  
aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, as a beverage, to one~~

~~contrary to the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the  
peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.~~

**DANIEL C ROLLINS,**  
~~BENJAMIN ROLLINS,~~ **District Attorney.**

0499

BOX:

33

FOLDER:

395

DESCRIPTION:

Cunningham, John

DATE:

03/09/81



395

0500

47

Filed 9 day of March 1881  
Pleas at July 10

THE PEOPLE  
vs.  
P  
Assault and Battery.—Felony.  
Furnish.  
Samuel J. Collins  
BENJ. K. PHELPS  
District Attorney.

A True Bill.  
Foreman.  
Discharged.

Constance (bail)  
by Guy Roberts  
24 Princeps  
for personal

March 11, 1881 — See this  
Case complete with  
Charge. She is very unwilling  
to testify. She was not hurt.  
The police was not charged  
at her, and the evidence is  
not clear that it was de-  
clared by someone. Mem-  
ber of Grand Jury, in former  
Case that that the case is  
very doubtful. It is clear  
that no evidence can be  
had, and it is not done  
any should be had. I am  
not to discharge of person  
on his own responsibility

B. K. Phelps  
District Attorney

0501

New York General Sessions.

PEOPLE, ON MY COMPLAINT,

*Mary Kinze* <sup>versus</sup> *and*  
*John Cunningham*

As complainant in the above case, I beg to recommend the defendant to such leniency and clemency as the Court and District Attorney may see fit to show; but I expressly assert that my reasons for so doing are not controlled by any advantage to myself. I have sustained no bodily injury and am satisfied beyond a doubt that the said John Cunningham had no intention of shooting me, and that the shot that struck me was purely accidental.

*Mary Kinze*  
113 Stanton

0502

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

of John J. Herrick 10th Dist Police Street,  
being duly sworn, deposes and says that on the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_  
187\_\_\_\_ at the City of New York, in the County of New York.

Mary Hinge (now here)  
The complainant in the hereto annexed affidavit  
has been living with the defendant  
John Cunningham for two years, they are  
now married that said Mary  
is a material witness, and is unwilling  
to testify. Therefore deponent prays that  
said Mary Hinge may be committed to  
House of detention in default of  
fact to appear as a witness.

John J. Herrick

Sworn to this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ 1871  
before me  
R. A. Murphy  
Police Justice.

0503

POLICE OFFICE, THIRD DISTRICT.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

vs.

Affidavit

Dated,

187

JUSTICE.

OFFICER.

WITNESSES:

*200 baul to  
appear as an  
interview -*

0504

Police Court—Third District.

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.  
OF NEW YORK }

*John Cunningham* being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge; and being informed that he was at liberty to answer, or not, all or any questions put to him, states as follows, viz.:

Question.—What is your name?

Answer.—*John Cunningham*

Question.—How old are you?

Answer.—*Twenty two years*

Question.—Where were you born?

Answer.—*New York*

Question.—Where do you live?

Answer.—*176 Orchard Street*

Question.—What is your occupation?

Answer.—*Truckman*

Question.—Have you anything to say, and if so, what—relative to the charge here preferred against you?

Answer.—*I did not fire the shot at the woman*

*John Cunningham*

Taken before me, this

day of March 1881

Police Justice.

0505

Form 15.

Police Court—Third District.

STATE OF NEW YORK,  
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

Mary Hinge

of No. 176 Orchard Street  
on Thursday the 3rd being duly sworn, deposes and says, that  
in the year 1881 at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

She was violently and feloniously ASSAULTED and BEATEN by  
John Cunningham (now here) who  
willfully and maliciously, pointed  
aimed and discharged a pistol  
loaded with powder and ball  
at the body of this deponent and  
one of said balls striking deponent  
on the right leg said pistol being  
then and there held in the hand of  
said Cunningham. Deponent charges  
that said Cunningham discharged  
said pistol

with the felonious intent to ~~take the life of deponent, or do her~~ <sup>her</sup> bodily harm; and without  
any justification on the part of the said assailant. <sup>Before I was shot</sup>  
Wherefore this deponent prays that the said assailant may be apprehended and  
bound to answer for the above assault, &c., and be dealt with according to law. <sup>in the face</sup> <sup>with his fist</sup> <sup>Abelaso</sup>

Sworn before me, this  
of March 1881 }  
day

B H Ripley

Mary Hinge

Police Justice.

0506

Form 15.

Police Court—Third District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,  
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

ARRAIGNED  
FELONIOUS.

Mary Anne  
House of Detention in  
default of 200 bail

John Cunningham  
Dated March 4 1889

Ripley  
Magistrate.

Herrick  
10 Precinct  
Officer.

WITNES:

Charles Linder  
148 East Houston Street

David Stepler  
180 Ludlow St



2000  
Cm

0507

District Attorney's Office.

THE PEOPLE,

vs.

Geo. Cunningham  
Kain

From:

A. G. Jones  
says this is  
a very doubtful  
case and  
the complaining  
witnesses refuse  
to testify.

0508

CITY AND COUNTY }  
OF NEW YORK, } ss.:

THE JURORS OF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,  
*in and for the body of the City and County of New York, upon  
their Oath, present:*

That

*John Cunningham*

late of the City of New York, in the County of New York, aforesaid,

on the *third* day of *March* in the year of our Lord  
one thousand eight hundred and eighty *one* with force and arms, at the City and  
County aforesaid, in and upon the body of *Mary Kinze*  
in the peace of the said People then and there being, feloniously ~~did~~ make an assault  
and to, at and against *her* the said *Mary Kinze*  
a certain *pistol* then and there loaded and charged with gunpowder and one  
leaden bullet, which the said *John Cunningham*  
in *his* right hand then and there had and held, the same being a deadly and  
dangerous weapon, *her* wilfully and feloniously ~~did~~ then and there shoot off and discharge,  
with intent *her* the said *Mary Kinze*  
thereby then and there, feloniously and wilfully to kill, against the form of the Statute  
in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of  
New York and their dignity.

SECOND COUNT.

*And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further present:* That  
afterwards, to wit, on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the City and County  
aforesaid, the said *John Cunningham*

with force and arms, in and upon the body of the said *Mary Kinze*  
in the peace of the said people then and there being, wilfully and feloniously ~~did~~ make  
an assault and to, at and against *her* the said *Mary Kinze*  
a certain *pistol* then and there loaded and charged with gunpowder and one  
leaden bullet, which the said *John Cunningham*  
in *his* right hand then and there had and held, the same being a deadly and  
dangerous weapon, *her* wilfully and feloniously ~~did~~ then and there attempt to discharge,  
with intent *her* the said *Mary Kinze*  
thereby then and there, feloniously and wilfully to kill, against the form of the Statute  
in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of  
New York and their dignity.

THIRD COUNT.

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further present: That afterwards, to wit, on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the City and County aforesaid, the said

*John Cunningham*

with force and arms, in and upon the body of the said *Mary Hinge* then and there being, wilfully and feloniously did make an assault and to, at and against *her* the said *Mary Hinge* a certain *pistol* then and there loaded and charged with gunpowder and one leaden bullet, which *pistol* the said

*John Cunningham* in *his* right hand, then and there had and held, wilfully and feloniously, and without justifiable and excusable cause, did then and there shoot off and discharge, with intent, then and there, thereby *her* the said *Mary Hinge*

wilfully and feloniously then and there to injure, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

FOURTH COUNT.

And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their Oath aforesaid, do further present: That afterwards, to wit, on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the City and County aforesaid, the said

*John Cunningham*

with force and arms, in and upon the body of the said *Mary Hinge* then and there being, wilfully and feloniously, did make an assault and to, at and against *her* the said *Mary Hinge* a certain *pistol* then and there loaded and charged with gunpowder and one leaden bullet, which *pistol* the said

*John Cunningham* in *his* right hand, then and there had and held, wilfully and feloniously, and without justifiable and excusable cause, did then and there attempt to shoot off and discharge, with intent, then and there, thereby *her* the said *Mary Hinge*

wilfully and feloniously then and there to injure, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

*Daniel G. Rollins*

~~BENJ. K. PHELPS~~, District Attorney.